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ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF WYOMING

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

Plaintif Civil Action NOO O L V 0 2 3 D

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTION
STAR PUBLISHING GROUP, INC,, d/b/a AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF
National Consumer Services, a Wyoming
corporation, and

KENT HOPKINS, individually and as an
officer of the corporation,

V.

Defendants.

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “the Commission”), for its complaint
alleges:

1. The FTC brings this action under Sections 5(a) and 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 53(b), to obtain temporary, preliminary, and permanent injunctive relief,

rescission of contracts, restitution, disgorgement, and other equitable relief for defendants’
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violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. §53(b). This action arises under 15 U.S.C.

§ 45(a)(1).

3. Venue in the United States District Court for the District of Wyoming is proper
under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and (c) and 15 U.S.C. § 53(b).

THE PARTIES

4. Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission, is an independent agency of the United
States Government created by statute. 15 U.S.C. § 41 ef seq. The Commission is charged, infer
alia, with enforcement of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair
or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce. The Commission is authorized to initiate
federal district court proceedings, by its own attorneys, to enjoin violations of the FTC Act in
order to secure such equitable relief as may be appropriate in each case, and to obtain consumer
redress. 15 U.S.C. § 53(b).

5. Defendant Star Publishing Group, Inc. (“Star’”), a Wyoming corporation with its
principal place of business at 1915 Oxford Lane, Suite 101A, Casper, Wyoming 82609,
promotes and sells a work-at-home employment guide. Star conducts or has conducted business
under the name National Consumer Services. Star transacts or has transacted business in the
District of Wyoming.

6. Defendant Kent Hopkins is the President of Star. At all times material to this
complaint, acting alone or in concert with others, he has formulated, directed, controlled, or
participated in the acts and practices of the corporate defendant, including the acts and practices
set forth in this complaint. He resides and transacts or has transacted business in the District of
Wyoming.

COMMERCE

7. At all times relevant to this complaint, defendants have maintained a substantial

course of trade in the offering for sale and sale of a work-at-home employment guide, in or
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affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.
DEFENDANTS’ BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

8. Since at 1east 1997, and continuing thereafter, defendants have advertised and sold
a work-at-home self-employment guide, called alternatively the “National Tracer Program” or the
“Refund Tracer Program” (referred to hereinafter as the “National Tracer Program,”) to
consumers throughout the United States.

9. In the course of advertising their National Tracer Program, defendants have
disseminated or caused the dissemination of advertisements in the help wanted, professional
employment, or business opportunity sections of newspapers and other publications offering
work-at-home employment opportunities. These advertisements include, but are not limited to,
the following statements:

$800 WEEKLY
POTENTIAL!!
Complet. Simple Government Forms at

Home! No Experience Necessary
1(800)696-4779 ext. 110

10.  Consumers who call the toll-free telephone numbers provided in the
advertisements are connected to a recorded message informing consumers that they can become

third party government tracers by purchasing the National Tracer Program, which sells for $34.59

plus shipping and handling.

11.  Defendants’ recorded message describes defendants’ program and includes, but is

not limited to, the following statements:

The government tracer program will allow you to earn up to $800 or more each
and every week working from home full or part time. . . .

.. .You can start working immediately and it's an extremely easy job you can do
from the comfort of your own home on either a full or part-time basis. The
Federal Government HUD Agency can provide you with the names of people to
contact by mail on a monthly basis. The entire program set up by the Federal
Government has only been in effect a short time. . . .

... You can earn anywhere from $200 to $300 for each person contacted. Our
National Tracer Program contains all the letters and forms needed to inform the
borrower you are a third party government tracer. Also, you’ll receive several
proven tracing methods and instructions on how to have the United States
Government send a U.S. Treasury check directly to you. You’ll also be provided
a direct telephone number for government assistance.
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.. .We would like to remind you that the government tracer program is not a get-

rich-quick business, but is a rewarding, verifiable and nationally recognized home

income opportunity designed by the U.S. Government to be mutually beneficial to

both you, the processor, and the homeowner. . . .

12.  Defendants’ recorded message also represents that defendants will provide
refunds after 90 days if consumers are not satisfied with defendants’ National Tracer Program, as
follows:

... If you are sincerely interested and want to earn up to $800 each and every
week working at home as a third party government tracer, the National Tracer
Program can be sent to you for $34.59 plus shipping and handling, COD, cash on
delivery. Your $34.59 will be refunded if you feel you are not making enough
money as a tracer after 90 days. You can authorize the agency to ship you the
National Tracer Program today for $34.59 plus shipping and handling, COD, cash
on delivery. . . .

13.  Consumers who wish to purchase the program are asked to record their names and
addresses on defendants’ answering machine. Shortly thereafter, defendants ship an information
package to consumers. Consumers pay approximately $40 for the package through a Cash On
Delivery (“COD”) payment to the United States Postal Service.

14. The National Tracer Program consumers receive from defendants consists of a
pamphlet that instructs consumers on the steps necessary to start their own businesses as refund
tracers, such as obtaining a tax identification number, purchasing the necessary state and city
business licenses, establishing a fictitious business name, and creating the appropriate forms and
letterhead as a refund tracer. The pamphlet explains that consumers must spend additional fees
ranging from $20 to $135 for lists of people who are entitled to receive refunds from HUD. The
pamphlet also offers guidance on the percentage or fee amount to request from the potential
refund recipients and ways to convince recipients to pay a fee to the tracer. The pamphlet
contains rudimentary information on how to trace peopie who may be entitled to refunds, and it
does not include any names of people who may be entitled to mortgage insurance refunds.

15. Consumers who requested a refund of the purchase price from defendants have in
numerous instances obtained one only after submitting a formal complaint to the Better Business

Bureau or to a law enforcement agency.
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DEFENDANTS’ VIOLATIONS OF THE FTC ACT

16.  Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), provides that “unfair or deceptive

acts or practices in or affecting commerce are hereby declared unlawful.”
COUNTI |

17.  Inthe course of offering for sale and selling their work-at-home employment
guide, defendants have represented, expressly or by implication, that consumers who purchase
their National Tracer Program earn or will earn a substantial income through defendants’
program.

18. In truth and in fact, in numerous instances, consumers who purchase the
defendants’ program do not or will not earn a substantial income through defendants’ program.

19.  Therefore, defendants’ representation as set forth in Paragraph 17 is false and
misleading and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. §45.

COUNT II

20.  In the course of offering for sale and selling their work-at-home employment
guide, defendants have represented, expressly or by implication, that defendants are affiliated
with the United States Government or that consumers who pay defendants’ fee will be employed
as refund tracers for the United States Government.

21. In truth and in fact, defendants are not affiliated with the United States
Government and consumers who pay defendants’ fee will not be employed as refund tracers for
the United States government;

22.  Therefore, defendants’ representations as set forth in Paragraph 20 are false and
misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. § 45.

COUNT III

23. In the course of offering for sale and selling their work-at-home employment

guide, defendants have represented, expressly or by implication, that they will provide refunds

after 90 days if consumers are not satisfied.
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24.  Intruth and in fact, in numerous instances defendants do not provide refunds if
consumers are not satisfied.

25.  Therefore, defendants’ representation as set forth in Paragraph 23 is false and
misleading and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. § 45.

COUNT IV

26. In the course of offering for sale and selling their work-at-home employment
guide, defendants have represented, expressly or by implication, that the National Tracer
Program contains everything the consumer needs to work as a refund tracer for the U.S.
Government.

27.  Defendants fail to disclose that the National Tracer Program is a self-employment
guide on how to start one’s own business as a refund tracer and that additional steps and costs are
necessary. This information would be material to consumers in their decisions to purchase
defendants’ product.

28.  Inlight of the representation set forth in Paragraph 26, defendants’ failure to
disclose the material facts set forth in Paragraph 27 is a deceptive act or practice in violation of

Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45.
CONSUMER INJURY

29.  Consumers nationwide have suffered or will suffer substantial monetary loss as a
result of defendants’ violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act. Absent injunctive relief by this
Court, defendants are likely to continue to injure consumers and harm the public interest.

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF

30. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this Court to grant
injunctive and other ancillary relief, including consumer redress, disgorgement, and restitution to
prevent and remedy any violations of any provision of law enforced by the Federal Trade
Commission.

31 This Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award ancillary relief

to remedy injury caused by the defendants’ law violations.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court, as authorized by Section
13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b) and pursuant to its own equitable powers:

1. Award plaintiff such preliminary injunctive and ancillary relief, including a
temporary restraining order and an accounting, as may be necessary to avert the likelihood of

consumer injury during the pendency of this action and to preserve the possibility of effective

final relief;
2. Permanently enjoin defendants from violating the FTC Act as alleged herein;
3. Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers

resulting from the defendants’ violations of the FTC Act, including, but not limited to, rescission
of contracts, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten gains; and
4. Award plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other and

additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper.

Respectfully Submitted,

DEBRA A. VALENTINE
General Counsel

Federal Trade Commission

();L/W'Q A : %ﬁ/@w@z

Carol A. Statkus
Assistant U.S. Attorney
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that I caused the foregoing Plaintiff’s Complaint (Complaint and
Summons also to be served via process server after filing), Motion for Temporary Restraining
Order, Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support thereof, with Exhibits, aad Temporary

Restraining Order (proposed) to be served on defendants on the date set forth below by the

following indicated methods:

by personal service at

. by mailing a full, true, and correct copy thereof in a sealed, first-class postaye-prepaid

envelope, addressed to [counse! for] defendants at

and deposited with the United States Postal Service at , Washington, on

the date set forth below.

%\ by sending full, true, and correct copies thereof to Star Publishing Group, Inc., d/b/a

National Consumer Services, and Kent Hopkins via overnight courier in a sealed, prepaid

envelope, addressed to defendants at 1915 Oxford Lane, Suite 101A_ Casper, WY 82609

on the date set forth below.
. by faxing a full, true, and correct copy thereof to [counsel for] defendants at the fax

number . The receiving fax machine was operatiny at the time of

service and the transmission was properly completed, according to the confirmation

report.

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 915 Second A ., Ste. 7896
Seattle, Wahunigton 98174
(206) 22 0-6350




